
 

Page 1 of 3 

Notice of Meeting  
 

Cabinet Member for Business 
Services and Resident Experience 
Decisions 

 
 

Date & time Place Contact Chief Executive  
Thursday, 10 
September 2015 at 
12.00 pm 

Mess Conference 
Room, County Hall, 
Kingston upon 
Thames. KT1 2DN 
 

Andrew Baird or Rianna 
Hanford 
Room 122, County Hall 
Tel 020 8541 7609 or 
0208213 2662 
andrew.baird@surreycc.gov.uk 
rianna.hanford@surreycc.gov.uk 

David McNulty 
 

 

If you would like a copy of this agenda or the attached papers in 
another format, eg large print or braille, or another language please 
either call 020 8541 9122, write to Democratic Services, Room 122, 
County Hall, Penrhyn Road, Kingston upon Thames, Surrey KT1 2DN, 
Minicom 020 8541 8914, fax 020 8541 9009, or email 
andrew.baird@surreycc.gov.uk or rianna.hanford@surreycc.gov.uk. 
 

This meeting will be held in public.  If you would like to attend and you 
have any special requirements, please contact Andrew Baird or 
Rianna Hanford on 020 8541 7609 or 0208213 2662. 

 

 
Elected Members 
Ms Denise Le Gal 

 

 

mailto:andrew.baird@surreycc.gov.uk


 
Page 2 of 3 

AGENDA 
 

1  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 
To receive any declarations of disclosable pecuniary interests from 
Members in respect of any item to be considered at the meeting. 
 

 

2  PROCEDURAL ITEMS 
 
 

 

2a  Members' Questions 
 
The deadline for Members’ questions is 12pm four working days before 
the meeting (4 September 2015). 
 

 

2b  Public Questions 
 
The deadline for public questions is seven days before the meeting (3 
September 2015). 
 

 

2c  Petitions 
 
The deadline for petitions is 14 days before the meeting, and no petitions 
have been received. 
 

 

3  SUPPLY OF TRANSPORT FOR SCHOOL MEALS - CONTRACT 
AWARD 
 
This report seeks approval to award a contract for the supply of transport 
for school meals for the benefit of the Council to commence on 1 January 
2016 as detailed in the recommendations as the current arrangements 
expire on 31 December 2015. 
 
The report provides details of the procurement process, including the 
results of the evaluation process and, in conjunction with the Part 2 report, 
demonstrates why the recommended contract award delivers best value 
for money. 
 
Due to the commercial sensitivity involved in the contract award process 
the financial details of the potential suppliers have been circulated as a 
Part 2 report. 
 

(Pages 1 
- 6) 

4  EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC 
 
That under Section 100(A) of the Local Government Act 1972, the public 
be excluded from the meeting during consideration of the following items 
of business on the grounds that they involve the likely disclosure of 
exempt information under the relevant paragraphs of Part 1 of Schedule 
12A of the Act. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



 
Page 3 of 3 

5  SUPPLY OF TRANSPORT FOR SCHOOLS MEALS - CONTRACT 
AWARD 
 
This is a part 2 annex relating to item 3. 
 
Exempt: Not for publication under Paragraph 3 
 
 
 
Confidential:  Not for publication under Paragraph 3 
Information relating to the financial or business affairs of any particular 
person (including the authority holding that information)  
 

(Pages 7 
- 12) 

 
David McNulty 

Chief Executive 
Published: Wednesday, 2 September 2015 

 
 

MOBILE TECHNOLOGY AND FILMING – ACCEPTABLE USE 
 

Those attending for the purpose of reporting on the meeting may use social media or mobile 
devices in silent mode to send electronic messages about the progress of the public parts of 
the meeting.  To support this, County Hall has wifi available for visitors – please ask at 
reception for details. 
 
Anyone is permitted to film, record or take photographs at council meetings. Please liaise with 
the council officer listed in the agenda prior to the start of the meeting so that those attending 
the meeting can be made aware of any filming taking place.   
 
Use of mobile devices, including for the purpose of recording or filming a meeting, is subject to 
no interruptions, distractions or interference being caused to the PA or Induction Loop systems, 
or any general disturbance to proceedings. The Chairman may ask for mobile devices to be 
switched off in these circumstances. 
 
It is requested that if you are not using your mobile device for any of the activities outlined 
above, it be switched off or placed in silent mode during the meeting to prevent interruptions 
and interference with PA and Induction Loop systems. 
 

Thank you for your co-operation 

 



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
 

SURREY COUNTY COUNCIL 

 

CABINET MEMBER FOR BUSINESS SERVICES AND 
RESIDENT EXPERIENCE 

DATE: 10 SEPTEMBER 2015 

LEAD 
OFFICER: 

 

BEVERLEY BAKER, HEAD OF COMMERCIAL SERVICES 

SUBJECT: AWARD OF CONTRACT FOR THE SUPPLY OF TRANSPORT 
FOR SCHOOL MEALS 

SUMMARY OF ISSUE: 

 
This report seeks approval to award a contract for the supply of transport for school 
meals for the benefit of the Council to commence on 1 January 2016 as detailed in 
the recommendations as the current arrangements expire on 31 December 2015. 
 
The report provides details of the procurement process, including the results of the 
evaluation process and, in conjunction with the Part 2 report, demonstrates why the 
recommended contract award delivers best value for money. 
 
Due to the commercial sensitivity involved in the contract award process the financial 
details of the potential suppliers have been circulated as a Part 2 report. 
 
 

RECOMMENDATIONS: 

 
It is recommended that a contract is awarded to Sheridan Myers Management 
Services LLP from 1 January 2016 for three years with an option to extend for a 
further two periods of one year each for Surrey County Council (SCC). 

 

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATIONS: 

 
A full tender process, in compliance with the requirements of Public Contracts 
Regulations 2015 and the Council’s Procurement Standing Orders has been 
completed and the recommendations provide an appropriate and flexible service 
which delivers best value for money for the Council.  
 
The supplier has demonstrated the ability to undertake the required service as 
specified through a competitive procurement and thorough evaluation process. 
 

DETAILS: 

Business Case 

1.  The contract gives SCC access to a reliable service for the supply of transport 
for school meals to primary schools that do not have kitchen facilities which 
represents value for money. The current arrangements expire on 31 

December 2015. 
 

Page 1

Item 3



2.  The contract supports SCC’s Commercial Services contractual obligations to 
provide school and civic meals across Surrey. It helps the schools to comply 
with their legal duty, including the Children’s and Families Act 2014, for  all 
state-funded schools, including academies and free schools, to offer a free 
school lunch to all pupils in reception, year 1 and year 2. 

 
3.  Currently 31 of the county’s primary schools do not have adequate kitchen 

facilities and therefore 25 schools with kitchen capacity are used to supply 
these schools with hot meals. The transportation service for permanent routes 
is either on a same day basis for transportation of meals and collection of 
containers for return to production kitchens, or on a next-day basis where 
meals are delivered daily but containers are collected the following day and 
returned to production kitchens. The service on a same day basis is needed 
for receiving schools which have no space to clean dishes after meals are 
consumed so these are returned to the production kitchen who carry out this 
function. 

 
4.  Additional route transport services are also provided on an ad hoc basis and 

are temporary in nature to cater for a variety of circumstances that include 
breakdown of equipment at a production kitchen requiring route change to 
collect meals from another site, transporting Commercial Services staff to 
serve the meals and equipment required including tables, kitchen equipment 
and food ingredients. 

 
5.  Commercial Services will provide ongoing contract management for the 

service throughout the life of the contract.   
 
Procurement Strategy and Options  

6.  A full tender process, compliant with the Public Contracts Regulations 2015 
and the Council’s Procurement Standing Orders, has been carried out using 
the Council e-Procurement systems which included advertising the contract 
opportunity in the Official Journal of the European Union (OJEU) on 28 April 
2015. 

 
7.  Several procurement options were considered when completing the Strategic 

Procurement Plan (SPP) prior to commencing the procurement activity.  
These included the following options:  

 a)  In-house provision of transport involving Commercial Services staff; 

 b) convert school serveries into production kitchens; 

c) utilise an external organisation’s framework agreement; 

 d) undertake a full EU compliant tender exercise and establish a contract.  

8.  After a full and detailed options analysis, the tender process described in 
paragraph 7(d) was chosen. Option 7(d) was selected as the option as 
described in 7(a) did not present an opportunity to obtain best value due to 
the costs of leasing or outright purchase of vehicles with associated running 
costs, labour costs for staff and vehicles not fully utilised as only needed for 
2.5 hours each day with all meals requiring delivery to schools between 11am 
and 1.30pm. Option 7(b) was rejected due to the high costs of funding 
building conversion with the schools in question not having sufficient space to 

Page 2



install catering facilities and the cost of supplying start up catering equipment 
to schools concerned. Option 7 (c) was rejected as the external food supply 
frameworks do not offer transportation of hot meals only as a service.   

Key Implications 

9.  By awarding a contract to the supplier as recommended for the supply of 
transport  for school meals to commence on 1 January 2016, schools will be 
meeting their obligations under the Children’s and Families Act 2014 and the 
Council  will be ensuring best value for money for this service to schools.  

10.  SCC, as part of the tender documentation, released a detailed specification 
and information about the delivery routes emphasising the importance of safe 
and secure delivery of hot meals for all scheduled runs completed within the 
agreed time slots.   

11. Appropriate contract management and monitoring of deliveries will take place 
throughout the duration of the contract and be reviewed at regular contract 
meetings. The management responsibility for the contract lies with 
Commercial Services who will maintain a process to ensure deliveries are 
monitored by way of service level agreements (SLAs).  For sustainability, 
transport routes are planned to minimise the mileage and are subject to 
review by Commercial Services to ensure continuous improvement. 

12.  Flexibility will be required to allow for annual reviews of the pricing schedule 
throughout the contract duration. This is to either remove schools from the 
delivery schedule that no longer require meals through Commercial Services 
or to add schools without kitchens which now require catering services from 
Commercial Services. The individual delivery routes are not guaranteed for 
the life of the contract and can be amended, terminated or increased 
dependent on the requirements of SCC and will result in adjustments to the 
value of the contract.  Schools are required to give Commercial Services a 
period of two terms notice should they wish to cancel their contract for 
catering services. A notice period of one month is provided to the supplier for 
route terminations or significant amendments to routes. 

13. The selected supplier has a network of sub-contractors who are recruited 
locally and include local residents with suitable vehicles for the service. They 
are therefore able to provide a local delivery service at a competitive cost, an 
option which was open to all tenderers. Consideration was given to dividing 
the contract into a number of individual lots for tender but was rejected as 
unaffordable and adding administrative complexity so this was deemed 
operationally unsuitable to Commercial Services at the time of the tender.  

14.  Commercial Services confirm that the selected supplier, as the incumbent for 
this contract, has performed consistently well and has shown considerable 
willingness to be flexible with the arrangements required. 

Competitive Tendering Process 

15.  All suppliers expressing an interest in the advertised tender opportunity were 
invited to tender for the contract and were given 42 days to complete and 
submit their tender. Tender responses were received from six suppliers for 
the contract, one of which failed to submit a complete tender and was 
deemed non-compliant.   

Page 3



16. The tender submissions were initially evaluated against selection criteria 
including Good Standing, Insurance Requirements, Financial Information, 
Health and Safety and Equalities, Quality Assurance and Sustainability, 
Social Value and Business Continuity.  

17.  From the assessment of the financial information provided, two suppliers 
were found to be unsuitable for award of the contract. One supplier was newly 
incorporated with no financial information available and the other supplier’s 
turnover was assessed as being too small for the contract. All suppliers 
passed all other selection criteria. 

18. Tender submissions were scored against the quality and price award criteria 
and weightings as shown below. For the quality criteria, pass/fail questions 
were included for response with particular reference to the suppliers having 
Disclosure and Barring Service (DBS) checks in place for all staff making 
deliveries, cover offered for staff absence, their acceptance of SLAs with Key 
Performance Indicators and their mandatory attendance at review meetings.  

Award Criteria Weighting 

Quality 

Section A – Council Objectives including Critical 
Success Factors 

2.8% 

Section B – Technical Capability 25.2% 

Section B – Technical Capability  (DBS checks , 
Staff absence cover) 

Pass/Fail 

Section C – Performance Management and 
Implementation 

12% 

Section C – Performance Management and 
Implementation (SLA acceptance, Attendance at 
Review Meetings) 

Pass/Fail 

Price 

Price – Permanent Route Cost 48% 

Price – Additional Route Cost 12% 

 

CONSULTATION: 

19. Key internal stakeholders have been consulted at all stages of the 
commissioning and procurement process including Procurement, Legal 
Services, Commercial Services and Finance. 

 
 

 

RISK MANAGEMENT AND IMPLICATIONS: 

20.  Risks were appropriately identified and have been satisfactorily mitigated.  
These risks and action to mitigate them include: 

a)  Cost – price  increases and decreases are possible throughout the contract 
duration as schools join or exit the arrangement which will be closely 
monitored by Commercial Services to ensure costs remain within budget and 
payments to the supplier are adjusted as required. Any price increase 
proposed by the supplier at the annual review will be negotiated prior to any 
increase being granted at the sole discretion of SCC. SCC has the flexibility 
to give the supplier one month’s notice for route terminations or significant 

Page 4



amendments to routes with the resultant adjustment to the value of the 
contract. 

b)  Stability – the supplier is not financially stable resulting in the supplier no 
longer being able to provide the service. Annual checks will be undertaken on 
the supplier to monitor their financial stability. 

c)  Reputation – the supplier does not meet delivery times, fails to satisfy 
safeguarding requirements or responds inadequately to emergencies.  
Ongoing checks and monitoring will be undertaken by Commercial Services 
to maintain standards. 

21. The contract includes termination provisions to allow SCC to terminate the 
contract with a three month notice period should circumstances change. If 
terminated, SCC will only be liable to pay the supplier for sums due for 
services provided up to the date of termination.  

22. The supplier recommended for contract award was assessed as satisfactory 
for all financial checks and will be required to provide either a Parent 
Company Guarantee or Performance Bond against failure. 

Financial and Value for Money Implications  

23.  Full details of the contract including values and financial implications are set 
out in the Part 2 report.  

24.  The procurement activity has delivered a solution which is a reduction against 
current annual core contract costs with savings of 9% overall and is therefore 
within budget. 

Section 151 Officer Commentary  

25.  The tender exercise outlined in this report provides Commercial Services with 
revised, flexible, fully evaluated contractual arrangements to meet their 
operational transport requirements. The anticipated costs are 9% less than 
currently budgeted. As part of 2015/16 budget setting Commercial Services 
were tasked with increasing net operating income by £500,000. This price 
reduction will provide greater flexibility to meet this target. 

Legal Implications – Monitoring Officer 

26. The existing contract extension expires on 31 December 2015. As set out in 
this report a full tender process in compliance with the requirements of the EU 
Procurement legislation and SCC’s Procurement Standing Orders has been 
completed.   

Equalities and Diversity 

27.  Commercial Services reviewed the Equality Impact Assessment (EIA) for the 
service and noted no amendments were required as the re-tendering of the 
requirement for the contract does not require a new policy, change of policy, 
is not a new function or a new service. Tender submissions were assessed 
for adherence to the Council’s Equality and Diversity policy with specific 
questions requiring response on how staff will uphold and promote the aims of 
the policy in day-to-day work and how the supplier will ensure staff comply 

Page 5



with their policies and monitor this. From mobilisation onwards Commercial 
Services will monitor the supplier’s adherence to the above and take 
appropriate action to address any concerns with the supplier. The preferred 
supplier will be required to comply with all relevant legislation. 

WHAT HAPPENS NEXT: 

29. The timetable for implementation is as follows: 
 

Action Date  

Cabinet Member decision to award  10 September 2015 

Cabinet call in period  11 to 17 September 2015 

‘Alcatel’ Standstill Period 18  to 28 September 2015 

Contract Signature October 2015 

Contract Commencement Date 1 January 2016 

 
30.  The Council has an obligation to allow unsuccessful suppliers the opportunity 

to challenge the proposed contract award. This period is referred to as the 
‘Alcatel’ standstill period. 

 

 
Contact Officer: 
Sara Walton, Category Specialist – Procurement and Commissioning, Business 
Services, Tel: 020 8541 7750  
 
Consulted: 
No external parties 
 
 
 

 

Page 6



Document is Restricted

Page 7

Item 5
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 11

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Supply of Transport for School Meals - contract award
	5 Supply of Transport for Schools Meals - contract award
	Annex 1 Full Scores v3


